ATIONS CERD

Di str.

International Convention on GENERAL

the Elimination

CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1289
of all Forms of 17 August 1998
Racial Discrimination

Oiginal: ENGLISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-third session
SUMMVARY RECORD OF THE 1289t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 12 August 1998, at 10 a.m
Chai rman: M. ABOUL- NASR
later: M. DI ACONU
later: M. ABOUL- NASR

CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Ninth to twelfth periodic reports of Jordan (continued)

Draft concludi ng observations concerning the fourteenth periodic report
of Cyprus (continued)

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG MEASURES AND
URGENT ACTI ON PROCEDURES (conti nued)

Bosni a and Her zegovi na (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98-17583 (E)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1289
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 4) (continued)

Ninth to twelfth periodic reports of Jordan (continued) (CERD/ C/ 318/ Add. 1;
HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 18/ Rev. 1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the del egation of
Jordan resuned their places at the Conmmittee table.

2. M. HADDAD (Jordan), replying to the Cormittee's questions, said that
the question of conflict between donestic |egislation and international or
bilateral instruments was settled by a conpetent court. There was also the
possibility of recourse to international arbitration

3. Jordan had distributed the text of the Convention, together with
comment ari es on human rights instrunments, to all State bodies, including

those responsible for security, and to the nedia, and it had been published
nati onwi de. Jordan's ninth, tenth, eleventh and twelfth periodic reports had
i kewi se been distributed to the media, which were free to publish and di scuss
them To commenorate the fiftieth anniversary of the Universal Declaration of
Human Ri ghts, the Government had established a commttee on human rights whose
menber ship included a mnister and representatives of bodies that worked in
rel evant fields.

4, Under the Penal Code, any person who was a victimof racia
di scrimnation could seek redress. Guarantees for plaintiffs included
the provision of a |lawer if the plaintiff did not already have one.

5. In response to the contention that articles 150 and 151 of the Pena

Code were not in accordance with article 4 of the Convention, he said that
there were other articles in Jordanian legislation that did specifically
conply with that article, and that the Penal Code had been drafted and adopted
bef ore Jordan had acceded to the Convention. The Governnent had requested

t hat anendnments to the Penal Code be drafted to take account of the provisions
of the Convention.

6. On the question of citizenship, a foreign woman who married a Jordani an
could be granted Jordanian nationality after five years of marriage. The
period was three years if the woman married to a Jordanian held an Arab
nationality. |In both cases, any children were considered Jordani ans. A
foreign man who married a Jordani an woman did not acquire his wife's
nationality, although he could apply for it. A person could not stand

for high public office until at |east 10 years after acquiring Jordani an
nationality.

7. Jordan was home to many political parties representing a whole range of
political views. The Governnent of Jordan had never refused authorization for
a political party on the basis of its political opinions. Political parties
were open to all, irrespective of race or religion. They could publish their
own newspapers and were not subject to Governnent control



CERD/ C/ SR. 1289

page 3
8. The Government prohibited distribution of The Protocols of the Elders
of Zion in Jordan.
9. Jordan was the only State that had granted citizenship to Pal estinians

collectively. Al Palestinians residing in Jordan had the right to take
Jordani an nationality. They could hold high office and take part in the
public life of the country in the sane way as other Jordanians. At the sane
time, they could keep their Palestinian identity. Palestinians, including
those who lived in canps, were free to nove around the national territory

Wit hout restrictions of any kind. The canps were not a formof racia
segregation. They had been set up under the supervision of the United Nations
Rel i ef and Wbrks Agency for Pal estine Refugees in the Near East (UNRWA) to
house refugees. Some Pal estinians chose to live in the canps for economnic
reasons.

10. There were no quotas as to the nunber of Pal estinians in Parlianment or
in the arny. Palestinians in the West Bank and Gaza Strip could apply for
tenmporary passports which made it easier for themto travel and thus enjoy
full freedom of novenent. However, the tenporary passports thenselves did not
endow t he hol ders with Jordani an nationality.

11. The King of Jordan and Prince Hassan had asked the internationa
comunity for help in dealing with di spl aced persons, since Jordan could not
provide electricity, schools, telecommunications and so on for 200, 000 people
si ngl e-handed. Neverthel ess, the CGovernnent was doing its best for them

12. Jordan was an Arab State based on Arab and Islamc culture, with a
civilization based not on racial differences, but on common humanity. His
country rejected all forns of racial discrimnation and respected hunman
rights.

13. M. de GOUTTES said that he had received a comunication dated July 1998
from a non-governnental organization, the Jordan Society for Human Ri ghts.

The Soci ety described the passing of a “tenporary law’ in May 1997, anending
the 1993 |l aw on the press. The tenporary |aw had been overturned, but in

June 1998 a new draft had been submitted to the | ower chanmber of the Jordanian
Parl i ament, banning the publication of certain types of material. 1t had been
widely criticized in sone quarters as being contrary to freedom of expression.
He would |i ke to know whether the draft |aw expressly referred to racia
discrimnation or incitenent to racial hatred.

14. M. YUTZIS, referring to paragraph 43 of the Jordani an report
(CERD/ C/ 318/ Add. 1), noted that article 16 of the Jordani an Constitution stated
that Jordani ans had the right of assenbly and the right to form associ ations
and political parties. Did that provision apply equally to people who were
not Jordani an citizens?

15. The CHAI RMAN pointed out that, according to its article 1, paragraph 2
the Convention did not apply to distinctions made by States parties between
citizens and non-citizens, unless they were of a very serious nature.




CERD/ C/ SR. 1289
page 4

16. M . HADDAD (Jordan), replying to M. Yutzis, said that the Governnent
permtted people to associate freely provided that it was inforned of the
proposed neeting, so that it could ensure public security and assure itself
that the nmeeting did not have an illegal purpose. There were no regul ations
forbi dding free associati on anong non-nationals of Jordan. There were, for
exanpl e, many religi ous neetings and professional conferences in Jordan, which
were attended by non-Jordani an national s.

17. Turning to the proposed anendnents to the |law on the press nentioned
by M. de Gouttes, he said that the first “tenporary |law of My 1997 had,
i ndeed, been overturned by the courts because it had been consi dered

unconstitutional. The |ater anmendnent proposed to punish infringements of
the law on the press by a fine, instead of inprisonment. It also laid down
a mninmmlevel of capital which Jordani an newspapers nust possess: in the

past, many of Jordan's newspapers had been so financially insecure that they
could barely pay their own staff and had, therefore, been vulnerable to
pressure fromhostile foreign interests. The nmeasure was therefore in the
interests of freedomof the press. The |aw prohibited the publication of
materi al which advocated incitenent to racial hatred, was offensive to any
other State, including Israel, or was prejudicial to national unity. It
prohi bited the publication of material which the witer knew to be untrue and
al lowed journalists to preserve the confidentiality of the source of their
material, even if it was State information. The draft had been approved by

t he | ower chanber of Parlianent, the House of Representatives, with a |arge
nunber of anendnents. It was now to be submitted to the upper house, the
Senate, and he hoped that it would enter into force soon. In his opinion, it
was a great inprovenent.

18. M. BANTON (Country Rapporteur), thanking the Jordanian representative
for the additional information, said that he was particularly pleased by the
Government's undertaking to review articles 150 and 151 of the Penal Code to
ensure that they were sufficiently conprehensive to neet the requirenents of
the Convention. Perhaps the deficiencies noted by the Commttee were
conpensated for by the provisions of other |aws, or perhaps defendants could
i nvoke the Convention itself before the Jordanian courts. |[If that was the
case, he asked the Jordanian Governnment to explain the situation clearly in
its next report. He also hoped that the next report would clearly explain any
speci al features of the region in which Jordan was situated, since not al
menbers of the Conmittee mght be familiar with that part of the world.

The Conmittee based its consideration of the situation in a State party on
the reports it received, which nust, therefore, be both full and easily
conpr ehensi bl e.

19. The CHAIRMAN said that the Committee had thus concluded the first part
of its consideration of the Jordanian report.

20. The del egation of Jordan wi t hdrew.

21. M. Diaconu took the Chair.




CERD/ C/ SR. 1289
page 5

Draft concludi ng observations concerning the fourteenth periodic report of
Cyprus (CERD/ C/ 53/ M sc.19; future CERD/ C/ 304/ Add. 56) (conti nued)

22. The CHAIRMAN invited the Comrittee to resune its consideration of the
draft concl udi ng observations concerning the fourteenth periodic report of
Cyprus (CERD/ C/ 53/ M sc. 19).

Par agraphs 12 and 13

23. Par agraphs 12 and 13 were adopted.

Par agr aph 14

24. M. BANTQN, follow ng suggestions by M. YUTZIS and M. RECHETOV,
proposed that the phrase “in the fight to elimnate racial discrimnation”
shoul d be replaced by “in the elimnation of racial discrimnation”.

25. Paragraph 14, as anended., was adopt ed.

Par agr aph 15

26. The CHAI RMAN, speaking as a nmenber of the Committee, said that technical
assi stance was usually offered only to relatively poor countries. He doubted
whet her Cyprus really came into that category.

27. M. van BOVEN said it was inmportant to make it clear that the Governnent
of Cyprus, in it efforts to set up a national human rights institution, could
make use of the expertise and information available within the Ofice of the
United Nations High Commr ssioner for Human Ri ghts, w thout necessarily
referring explicitly to the kind of assistance sought.

28. M. de GOUTTES said that it was inmportant to enphasize the main point -
namely, that a human rights institution was to be set up in Cyprus.

29. M. SHAHI, agreeing with M. de Gouttes, said that Cyprus had prepared
its report conpetently and that the Governnent did not, therefore, appear to
need technical assistance fromthe Ofice of the Hi gh Comm ssioner. Should
t he paragraph be retained, he woul d suggest addi ng that the Governnent m ght
avail itself of the expertise of nmenbers of the Committee.

30. M. YUTZIS pointed out that, as it stood, the paragraph inplied that the
establishnment of a human rights institution had been an idea of the Commttee,
whereas it was, in fact, an initiative of the Governnent of Cyprus. It should
therefore be reworded to that effect.

31. M. van BOVEN, supported by M. RECHETOV, proposed that the Committee
shoul d adopt the follow ng conprom se text:

“The Commi ttee suggests that the Governnent of Cyprus may wi sh to
avail itself of any advice and assistance which may be rendered by the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1289
page 6

O fice of the United Nations H gh Conm ssioner for Human Rights with
regard to the Governnment's initiative to establish a national human
rights institution.”

32. It was so deci ded.

33. Paragraph 15, as anended., was adopt ed.

New par agraph 16

34. M. van BOVEN proposed inserting a new paragraph 16, with the fina
par agraph of the draft renumbered accordingly, reading:

“The Committee requests the State party to give wide publicity in
its territory to the fourteenth report submtted to the Cormittee, to
the present concluding observations, as well as to the possibilities of
maki ng use of the procedure provided for in article 14 of the
Convention.”

35. New par agraph 16 was adopt ed.

Par agraph 16 (new paradgraph 17)

36. Paragraph 16 (new paragraph 17) was adopt ed.

37. The draft concl udi ng observations concerning the fourteenth periodic
report of Cyprus as a whole, as anended, were adopted.

38. M. Aboul - Nasr resuned the Chair

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG MEASURES AND
URGENT ACTI ON PROCEDURES (conti nued)

Bosni a and Her zegovi na (conti nued)

39. M. NOBEL, noting that the issue had been included in the programre of
wor k under the itemon prevention of racial discrimnation but that a
substantive di al ogue had in the nmeantinme been resuned with the State party's
del egati on, wondered whet her as Country Rapporteur he could draft a text in
the form of ordinary concludi ng observati ons.

40. M. van BOVEN said that he could see no objection to doing so.

41. M. SHAHI said that the question of Bosnia and Herzegovi na had al ways
come under item 3 and he hinself would prefer to continue to deal with it as
an urgent matter. Al so, thought nust be given to the precedent that woul d be
set, and whether the Comrittee wanted thereafter to consider that the delivery
of a substantive statenent by a State party representative was the equival ent
of a periodic report.

42. M. DIACONU concurred. The Conmittee could not change agenda itens in
m d-stream and there was no periodic report. The issue should remain under
item 3 and the Country Rapporteur could informthe State party either that the



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1289
page 7

subject would in future continue to come under urgent action procedures or
that it would thenceforth be dealt with according to the normal procedure for
the consideration of reports under article 9 of the Convention

43. M. RECHETQV, agreeing with M. Shahi, said that in its final report,
however, the Conmittee should note the very constructive devel opnent that the
representative of Bosnia and Herzegovi na had cone before the Conmittee, which
had given the Committee a sense of the situation there and even some cause for
optim sm

44, M. de GOUTTES, supporting M. Shahi, said that the del egation itself
woul d be perplexed if the Cormittee dealt with the issue under a procedure

ot her than the one under which it had been invited. The matter should remain
under the prevention procedure and Bosnia and Herzegovi na shoul d be asked to
submt a report under article 9 as soon as possible.

45, M. SHERIFIS said that the matter, which was in the programre of work
under prevention procedures, definitely did not come under consideration of
reports under article 9 of the Convention

46. M . BANTQON, observing that it was not the first time a delegation from
Bosni a and Herzegovina had nmet the Committee, said that the Commttee shoul d
be consistent and treat the matter, as in 1996, under item 3. He agreed that
in the Committee's final report it would have to be dealt with in the form of
a decision. But that decision - as a mddle way - could be couched in terns
simlar to ordinary concluding observations, with a final paragraph saying
that the Cormittee hoped it could in future revert to its ordinary procedure,
t hus | eaving the course open

47. The CHAIRMAN said that he took it the Cormittee wi shed to proceed as
M. Banton had suggest ed.

48. It was so deci ded.

The neeting rose at 12.10 p. m




